
1 
 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, December 17, 2019  

 
Chairman Johansen called the December 17, 2019 regular session of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website (December 6, 2019), and published 
in a legal newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of 
December 9, 2019. In addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on December 6, 2019 
copies of such notice of meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e‐mail or mail in 
accordance with Article 3, Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order.   
 
The County Board received opinion from Corporation Counsel Malone that the initial advance 
written notice, posted and published as described by the Clerk satisfied the applicable provision 
of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable procedural provisions of the Polk County 
Board Rules of Order.  
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call. All fifteen 
County Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum.  
 
Chairman Johansen led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a time of reflection. Supervisor Masters offered a 
time of reflection offering wishes for health and happiness during the holiday season and noted 
remembrance of the birth of Jesus. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor consideration and approval of the Agenda as published. 
Motion (Bonneprise/Jepsen) to adopt the Agenda. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote 
on the motion to adopt the Agenda as published. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(Masters/Luke) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Chairman Johansen called for a voice 
vote on the motion to adopt the Consent Agenda. Supervisor O’Connell noted scrivener’s error 
on agenda which stated “approval of published minutes from October 15, 2019”. Correct date 
of minutes should be November 12, 2019 noted by Chairman Johansen. Motion to adopt the 
consent agenda with said change carried by unanimous voice vote.  Matters adopted under the 
Consent Agenda:  Minutes from November 12, 2019 County Board session adopted as 



2 
 

published and Resolution No. 49‐19: Resolution to Approve a Zoning District Change and to 
Amend Zoning District Map for Town of Lincoln. 
 
Time was given for public comment.  Two public comments were received by County Board. 
 
Chairman Johansen announced the appointment of Terry Hauer as a voting member to the 
Board of Northwest ITBEC (International Trade Business and Economic Development Council) 
for the remaining term to August 2020. Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator 
Netherland to provide information regarding ITBEC and appointee Hauer. 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to confirm said appointment.  
Motion (Bonneprise/Demulling) to confirm appointment of Terry Hauer as a voting member to 
the Board of NW ITBEC. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to confirm 
said appointment. Motion to confirm appointment of Terry Hauer as a voting member to the 
Board of Northwest ITBEC carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called upon County Clerk Jorgenson for the purpose of providing 
information regarding 2020 Spring Election updates and deadlines for Board of Supervisors 
planning to run for re‐election in April. The County Board received information that candidacy 
paperwork and signatures are due in the Clerk’s office by 5 p.m. on January 7, 2020 in order to 
have their name on the ballot. Incumbents not seeking re‐election should file a Notice of Non‐
candidacy by December 27, 2019.  
 
Time was given for the County Board Chairperson’s report.  The County Board received written 
information regarding meetings attended by the Chair and information regarding per diems 
paid to date.  
 
Time was given for Supervisor’s reports regarding outside meetings attended. Supervisors 
Nelson, O’Connell, Jepsen, Luke, Bonneprise, and Demulling gave updates on outside meetings 
attended. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Administrator Netherland for the Administrator’s report. The 
County Board received information regarding meetings attended by the Administrator and 
updates regarding:  the Environmental Division position that has been offered and accepted, 
broadband expansion, housing and workforce. Administrator Netherland also announced the 
recent retirement of Tim Ritten, Land and Water Director, noting his good work and wishing 
him well on his retirement.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 48‐19: Resolution to Adopt the 2020‐
2024 Polk County Outdoor Recreation Plan. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 48‐19. Motion (O’Connell/Edgell) to adopt Resolution No. 48‐19. Chairman 
Johansen called upon Supervisor O’Connell to provide information to the County Board 
regarding the resolution. Motion (Nelson/Olson) to amend Resolution No. 48‐19 to add the 
following whereas clause to the resolution: 



3 
 

“Whereas, the Polk County Board of Supervisors intends to update the scope of the future 
Outdoor Recreation Plan to make it a document that thoroughly reviews relevant outdoor 
recreation in the county, obtains quality input from outdoor recreation stakeholders, provides 
prioritization of outdoor recreation opportunities and will be used for decision making on uses 
and funding of outdoor recreation opportunities”.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to amend Resolution No. 48‐19 as 
stated. Motion to amend Resolution No. 48‐19 as previously stated carried by unanimous voice 
vote.  
County Board engaged in discussion regarding the resolution. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 48‐19 as amended. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 48‐19 as amended carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 48‐19: Resolution to Adopt the 2020‐2024 Polk County Outdoor Recreation Plan 
adopted as amended.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 54‐19:  Resolution in Support of Polk 
County’s Application for the 2020‐2024 Transportation Alternatives Program Grant.  Chairman 
Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 25‐19.  
Motion (Nelson/Demulling) to adopt Resolution No. 54‐19. Chairman Johansen called upon 
Supervisor O’Connell to provide information to the County Board regarding the resolution. 
Administrator Netherland provided information to the County Board regarding the 
grant/resolution. The total cost of the study would be a maximum of $57,000 of which Polk 
County would pay 20%. County Board engaged in discussion regarding the resolution. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 54‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 54‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 54‐19:  Resolution in Support of Polk County’s Application for the 2020‐2024 
Transportation Alternatives Program Grant adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 50‐19: Resolution to Fix Compensation 
of County Board Supervisors and Citizen Committee Members, Commencing April 2020 
Term.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 50‐19.  
Motion (Masters/Luke) to adopt Resolution No. 50‐19. Chairman Johansen called upon 
Supervisor Masters to provide information to the County Board regarding the resolution. 
Chairman Johansen called upon Corporation Counsel Malone to provide information regarding 
options for board compensation. Motion (Bonneprise/Demulling) to amend Resolution to 
maintain status quo of $100 per meeting (instead of per diem) payment to supervisors plus 
payment of mileage/travel at the current IRS rate. Board engaged in discussion regarding the 
resolution. Supervisor Luke called for the question and a roll call vote. 
Chairman Johansen called for a roll call vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 50‐19 as 
amended. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 50‐19 with said amendments carried by roll call vote with 10 
voting yes and 4 voting no (Voting no: Supervisors Olson, Nelson, Masters, and Larsen, 
abstaining from voting: Chairman Johansen).  
Resolution No. 50‐19: Resolution to Fix Compensation of County Board Supervisors and Citizen 
Committee Members, Commencing April 2020 Term adopted as amended.  



4 
 

 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor discussion regarding proposed language changes to 
Ordinance No. 67‐10: Polk County Smoke Free Air Ordinance.  
 
Motion (Bonneprise/Prichard) to amend Ordinance No. 67‐10 to add/include vaping and 
electronic devices and add definitions as needed for vaping and electronic devices.     
  
Chairman Johansen called upon Supervisor Bonneprise to provide information to the County 
Board regarding proposed changes. Corporation Counsel Malone provided information to the 
County Board regarding the proposed amendments to Ordinance No. 67‐10. 
Point of Order by Supervisor O’Connell that Resolution and/or paperwork regarding proposed 
amendments was not included in the County Board packet.  Corporation Counsel Malone 
clarified that due to codification of ordinances that are in process, amendments to current 
ordinances would not require preparation of a resolution. Corporation Counsel Malone 
provided further clarification that after learning the codification process will take one year or 
more to complete, a resolution will be prepared and presented at January County Board 
meeting as to proposed amendments, adding vaping and electronic delivery devices and adding 
definitions as needed for vaping and electronic devices. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion to amend Ordinance No. 67‐10 to 
include vaping and electronic devices and present ordinance/resolution to County Board for 
final approval at January County Board meeting. Motion to amend Ordinance No. 67‐10 and 
present ordinance/resolution to County Board for final approval at January County Board 
meeting carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for discussion, information and possible action regarding 
contract crushing at the lime quarry. Chairman Johansen called upon Highway Commissioner 
Norby to provide information to the board regarding contract crushing at the lime quarry. The 
County Board received an update in written form regarding the lime quarry, including; history, 
contract crushing bid received, and current hours of operation at the quarry. The County Board 
engaged in discussion regarding the hours of the lime quarry and the possibility of keeping the 
quarry open five days a week. Corporation Counsel Malone provided legal advice regarding the 
County Board’s role in regard to oversight of the quarry. 
 
Motion (O’Connell/Nelson) to request the Administrator provide direction to Highway 
Commissioner/Division Head Norby that the lime quarry be open five days a week 8 hours a 
day.  Chairman Johansen ruled the motion out of order.  Discussion. 
 
Motion (Jepsen/Larsen) that County Board come to a consensus that lime quarry be open 5 
days a week. Point of order called by Supervisor Arcand. Chairman Johansen called for a voice 
vote on said motion. Motion to have lime quarry open 5 days a week failed by majority voice 
vote.  
Chairman Johansen declared Administrator Netherland and Highway Commissioner/Division 
Head Norby will determine operating days and hours of lime quarry. 



5 
 

 
Time was given for Supervisors announcements. Supervisor Nelson initiated discussion 
regarding past history regarding the practice of holding or cancelling the February County Board 
meeting.  
Motion (Luke/Bonneprise) to make a decision regarding holding or cancelling the February 
County Board meeting in January. Chairman Johansen declared an item regarding decision as to 
February board meeting will be added to the January County Board agenda.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Larsen/Bonneprise) to adjourn. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried 
by unanimous voice vote.  Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned 7:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
 
 
 







 
                                         POLK  COUNTY,  WISCONSIN 

WWW.CO . PO L K .W I . U S  
 

                                       Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 

Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 
Tuesday, December 17, 2019 

Regular Business Meeting, 6:00 p.m.  
Open Session 

 
Order of Business: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Receipt of Evidence and Opinion on Proper Notice 
3. Roll Call 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Time of Reflection 
6. Approval of Agenda  
7. Matters Offered For Adoption on Consent Agenda: 

a. Consideration/corrections to the published minutes from November 12, 2019 
County Board Meeting 

b. Resolution No. 49‐19: Resolution to Approve a Zoning District Change and to 
Amend Zoning District Map for Town of Lincoln 

8. Public Comments –3 minutes per person –not to exceed 30 minutes total 
9. County Board Chair Report 

a. Confirmation of Appointment of Voting Member to ITBEC (for Remaining Term 
to August 2020) – Terry Hauer 

b. 2020 Spring Election Updates for County Board  
c. Supervisor’s Reports from Outside Committee Meetings Attended 

10. Administrator’s Report – Vince Netherland 
11. Proposed Resolutions, Ordinances and Other Board Action:              

a. Resolution No. 48‐19: Resolution to Adopt the 2020‐2024 Polk County Outdoor 
Recreation Plan – (Report of Environmental Services Committee) 

b. Resolution No. 54‐19:  Resolution in Support of Polk County’s Application for the 

2020‐2024 Transportation Alternatives Program Grant – (Report of Environment 

Services Committee) 

c. Resolution No. 50‐19: Resolution to Fix Compensation of County Board 
Supervisors and Citizen Committee Members, Commencing April 2020 Term 

– (Report of General Government Committee) 

d. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Proposed Language Changes to 

Ordinance No. 67‐10: Polk County Smoke Free Air Ordinance ‐ (Report of Health 

& Human Services Board) 



Polk County Board of Supervisors       

    2 
 

e. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Bid(s) for Crushing at Lime Quarry 

12. Supervisors Announcements  
13. Adjourn 

This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715‐485‐9226) at least 24 
ours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests 
are confidential. 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center ‐ County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting  
Tuesday, November 12, 2019  

Public Hearing on Proposed Operating and Capital Budget for Calendar Year 
2020 

 
Chairman Johansen called the November 12, 2019 regular session of the Polk County Board of 
Supervisors to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website (October 31, 2019), and published 
in a legal newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of 
November 4, 2019. In addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on October 31,  2019 
copies of such notice of meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e‐mail or mail in 
accordance with Article 3, Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order.   
 
The County Board received opinion from Interim Corporation Counsel Loso that the initial 
advance written notice and the agenda, posted and published as described by the Clerk 
satisfied the applicable provision of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable 
procedural provisions of the Polk County Board Rules of Order.  
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call. Thirteen County 
Board Supervisors were present representing a quorum. Absent and excused were Supervisor 
Masters and Supervisor Edgell. Supervisor Masters joined meeting at 6:39 p.m. Supervisor 
LaBlanc exited meeting at 6:48 p.m. 
  
Chairman Johansen led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a time of reflection. No time of reflection was 
received. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor consideration and approval of the Agenda. Motion 
(Bonneprise/Route) to adopt the Agenda. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the 
motion to adopt the agenda as published. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(Jepsen/O’Connell) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt the Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice 
vote.  Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda:  Minutes from October 15, 2019 County 



2 
 

Board session adopted as published and Resolution No. 51‐19: Resolution to Approve Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment for the Town of St Croix Falls adopted.  
 
Time was given for public comment.  No public comment was received by County Board. 
 
The County Board received a presentation from Sheriff Waak regarding the benefits of the 
Federal 1033 Asset Sharing Program where new and like new high quality equipment items can 
be acquired from the military by paying shipping costs. The Asset Sharing Program benefits the 
Sheriff’s Department and the Polk County tax payers as well. 
 
The County Board received a presentation from Kristin Boland, CJCC Coordinator regarding the 
Polk County Criminal Justice Collaborating Council and various programs offered.  
 
Time was given for the County Board Chairperson’s report. The County Board received 
information regarding Chairman Johansen’s recent meeting with Radio Bob. 
 
Time was given for Supervisor’s reports regarding outside meetings attended. Supervisor 
Nelson reported on a Northern Regional Trail Advisory Committee (NoRTAC) meeting attended 
involving 10 counties. Supervisor Jepsen reported on meetings attended including: a transit 
meeting held in St Croix County, a West Cap meeting attended and upcoming meetings at Chula 
Vista regarding planning for Highway Committee conference and a Land Use committee 
meeting. Supervisor Bonneprise reported on recent Health and Human Services meetings 
attended: one in Stevens Point, WI and a legislative meeting in New Richmond, WI. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a motion to confirm the appointment of Malia 
Malone as Interim County Administrator. Motion (Jepsen/Luke) to confirm the appointment of 
Malia Malone as Interim County Administrator. Motion to confirm said appointment carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Interim Administrator Malone for the Administrator’s report.  
County Board received information from Interim Administrator Malone regarding upcoming 
interviews for Environmental Services Division Director. Interim Administrator Malone 
extended thanks to County Board for their support during her Interim Administrator 
appointment. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a motion to confirm the employment of Vince 
Netherland as County Administrator. Motion (Masters/Larsen) to confirm the employment of 
Vince Netherland as County Administrator. Motion to confirm said employment carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 52‐19: Resolution Regarding the Class 
Action National Prescription Opioid Litigation.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 52‐19.  
Motion (Bonneprise/Luke) to adopt Resolution No. 52‐19. Chairman Johansen called upon 
Interim Administrator Malone to provide information to the County Board regarding the 



3 
 

resolution. County Board engaged in discussion regarding the resolution. Chairman Johansen 
called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 52‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 52‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 52‐19: Resolution Regarding the Class Action National Prescription Opioid 
Litigation adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion for a recess at 6:59 p.m. Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to 
recess for the Public Hearing to be held at 7:00 p.m. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote 
on said motion. Motion to recess for the Public Hearing on the Budget carried by unanimous 
voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen declared the Public Hearing on the proposed Operating and Capital Budget 
for Calendar Year 2020 open at 7:00 p.m. Chairman Johansen offered a time for public 
testimony regarding the 2020 budget. The County Board received information from Supervisor 
Masters regarding the budget.  No other public testimony was offered. Chairman Johansen 
declared the Public Hearing closed (7:02 p.m.). 
Chairman Johansen called for a recess until 7:05 p.m.  
 
Chairman Johansen called the meeting back into legislative session at 7:09 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 55‐19: Resolution to Ratify Labor 
Agreement with Wisconsin Professional Police Association – Field Services Association Local 
201 for Period Beginning January 1, 2020.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 55‐19.  
Motion (Luke/Route) to adopt Resolution No. 55‐19.  Interim Administrator Malone provided 
information to the County Board regarding the resolution and the labor agreement.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 55‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 55‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 55‐19: Resolution to Ratify Labor Agreement with Wisconsin Professional 
Police Association – Field Services Association Local 201 for Period Beginning January 1, 2020 
adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 56‐19: Resolution to Ratify Labor 
Agreement with Wisconsin Professional Police Association – Field Sergeants Association for 
Period Beginning January 1, 2020.  Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution 
No. 56‐19. Motion (Demulling/Masters) to adopt Resolution No. 56‐19. Chairman Johansen 
called upon Interim Administrator Malone to provide information to the County Board 
regarding the resolution, labor agreement, and side letters.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 56‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 56‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 56‐19:  Resolution No. 56‐19: Resolution to Ratify Labor Agreement with 
Wisconsin Professional Police Association – Field Sergeants Association for Period Beginning 
January 1, 2020 adopted.  
 



4 
 

Chairman Johansen called to the floor Resolution No. 53‐19: Resolution to Adopt the Polk 
County Operating and Capital Budget for the Calendar Year 2020 and to Set the 2020 Tax 
Levy. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 53‐19.  
Motion (Jepsen/Larsen) to adopt Resolution No. 53‐19. Chairman Johansen called upon Finance 
Director Maggie Wickre to provide information to the County Board regarding the budget 
resolution. Interim Administrator Malone noted the fact there were no technical amendments 
or additional changes to the budget was a testament to the work of the administration staff. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt Resolution No. 53‐19. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 53‐19 carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Resolution No. 53‐19: Resolution to Adopt the Polk County Operating and Capital Budget for 
the Calendar Year 2020 and to Set the 2020 Tax Levy adopted.  
 
Time was given for Supervisors announcements.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Bonneprise/Arcand) to adjourn. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried 
by unanimous voice vote.  Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned 7:18 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
















































































































































































































































































	Minutes 12-17-19
	12-17-19 Certif of Minutes for Leader
	Lime Quarry Update 12-2019
	County Board Agenda 12-17-19
	Minutes 11-12-19
	Res2019 48-19 Adopt 2020-2024 Outdoor Recreation Plan
	Res2019 49-19 Grant Zoning District Change for Town of Lincoln
	Res2019 50-19 Fix Compensation of County Board Supervisors Commencing 4-2020
	Res2019 54-19 Application for 2020-2024 Transportation Alternatives Program Grant

